Minutes of the Leland Grove City Council

January 26, 2016 6:00 PM
Instructional Resource Center 2000 Chatham Road Leland Grove, IL, 62704

The Regular Meeting of the City of Leland Grove Council was called to order by the Honorable Mayor
Jill Egizii at 6:01pm. Those present were asked to give the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Roll Call was taken by Clerk Klokkenga. A quorum was present. The following members were
present (P) or absent (A) as indicated.
Jill Egizii, Mayor (P)

Steve Klokkenga, Clerk (P)

Brian Miller, Treasurer (P)

Saul Morse, Legal Counsel (P)

Diana Hetherington, Ward 1 (P)

John Creasey, Ward 1 (P)

Nick Williams, Ward 2 (P)

Jim Moll, Alderman, Ward 2 (P)
Donald LoBue, Alderman, Ward 3 (P)
Paul LaMantia, Alderman, Ward 3 (P)

Also present were:
Tyler Lanier, City Administrator
Dan Ryan, Leland Grove Police Chief

A motion was made by Alderman Hetherington to approve the Minutes of the December 2015 Leland
Grove City Council Meeting. The motion was seconded by Alderman Creasey and passed unanimously.

Mayor Egizii acknowledged State Representative Sara Jiminez at the meeting. In addition, Lori
Milosevich from Estes Bidgewater & Ogden was also present to present the Annual Financial Report of
the City.

First, Representative Sara Jiminez addressed the Council and talked about her new position as State
Representative where her district encompasses Leland Grove. She also discussed her professional
background and indicated she was visiting all village boards and city councils in her district.
Representative Jiminez left her business cards for the Council. She asked the Council to please call or e-
mail her should ever there be a need.

Second, Lori Milosevich from Estes Bridgewater &Ogden presented the Annual Financial Report (AFR)
to the City Council explaining the balances and breakdown of expenditures. They had no difficulties
performing the Audit and overall it was a good report.

Treasurer Miller inquired about Schedule 5 on Page 25 of the AFR and the expenses of the police
department appearing out of balance. It was concluded that the funds appeared out of balance because of
the tax levee not being reflected in the police fund. Treasurer Miller asked for the Auditor to provide
further clarification when possible.

Alderman LoBue inquired about Statement 4 on page7 of the AFR, under Capital Improvements, and
indicated this looks like a negative. It was concluded that Chatham Road could be the reason and Ms.
Milosevich will look into this in more detail and report back



TREASURER’S REPORT

o Financial Statement — Treasurer Miller presented his report to the Council and invited any
guestions. There were none.

e Approval of Bills, Unpaid and Paid Warrants — A motion was made by Alderman Hetherington
and seconded by Alderman Moll to approve the Unpaid warrant GF P01384 in the amount of
$21,877.01. The motion carried unanimously
A motion was made by Alderman Hetherington and seconded by Alderman LaMantia to approve
unpaid warrants from fund MFT- P — 01- 385 in the amount of $126.36. The motion passed
unanimously.

A motion was made by Alderman Hetherington and seconded by Alderman LaMantia to approve
Paid warrants in the amount of $51,956 from the General Fund P-01-386. The motion passed
unanimously.

CITY ADMINISTRATORS REPORT
Administrator Lanier reported on the Leaf Pick-up in the City. His review of the statistics shows that
Leland Grove disposed of 434 cubic yards of leaves last year. One cubic yard equaling 26 bags.

Administrator Lanier recommended to the Council that it cut down the number of weeks for fall pick up
from 5to 4. In addition he put out the idea of distributing stickers from the City Hall Office where only
so many would be free and then after that the City would charge $1.00 or $1.50 per additional sticker.
Treasurer Miller inquired about the cost of dumping and Administrator Lanier will get back to him with
the information. Alderman Hetherington voiced her concern for the sewers getting clogged and would
rather cut down on the total hours of service. Alderman LoBue commented that the Leaf Pick-up
Program is the best program the City has, wants to keep things going and cutting time may be the best
option.

Running the Leaf Pick up at 4 weeks instead of 5 will save the City approximately $2,000. Alderman
Williams indicated he would like to keep 5 weeks of service.

Overall it was decided that the Council should stay with 5 weeks of service until further notice.

LEGAL UPDATE AND ACTIONS
Legal Update Memo — Attorney Morse presented his report to the Council. The Council has a rule
that ordinances have to be considered at three meetings before voting unless the ordinance is an
emergency. Alderman Hetherington asked how many residents would be affected if it is passed.
Alderman LaMantia responded that only 3 residents would be affected at this time.

Chief Ryan would like to change 6-2-A-2 of Section A of the proposed ordinance to adjust the
amount of time a vehicle or boat can be left out. Chief Ryan also indicated in Part D there is an
issue as one could park their boat on the side of the house and yet still be seen at all times.
Alderman LoBue proposed combining Sections A and D and Chief Ryan indicated that it would
satisfy his concerns.



Alderman Hetherington expressed her confusion over the issue and would like to pull out “boats”
language and create a separate section.

Alderman Williams stated that the ordinance needs to better define “48 hour period” as stated.
How long do they have to be gone before they can park in the same spot again? Mayor Egizii
recommended possibly issuing permits for parking longer than 48 hours. Attorney Morse
indicated it could be done but would like to research the issue first.

Attorney Morse further indicated that the Council would need to create an Ordinance. The issue
may very well be how do we handle residents who just keep paying to keep their vehicles parked?
Alderman Williams asked if it could somehow be left open ended so that when the Council needs
to respond to something it can and still help residents? Attorney Morse replied that standards
should be clear and there should be no room for a gray area in any ordinance. It could possible
set up the council for legal action claiming unequal enforcement. Mayor Egizii suggested
Attorney Morse work with Paul LaMantia and Jim Moll to keep working on the ordinance.

Alderman LaMantia commented that Page 12 of current zoning ordinance needs to be better
defined.

Alderman Moll noted that residents all pretty much have grass on the side of their homes.

Regarding the Ordinance on Zoning and Building, Alderman LaMantia explained the diagram he
handed out pertaining to the Ordinance. It proposes to explain in detail about corner lot, interior
lot and double frontage lots. He noted the side lot/yard is considered part of the front yard in the
diagram. Alderman Hetherington expressed that she would like the Diagram to become a part of
the Ordinance to help clarify.

Alderman Creasey expressed his concern regarding insurers and how a sole proprietor must have
workers compensation insurance. Alderman LoBue disagreed. A healthy discussion continued.

Attorney Morse mentioned that Section 8-1-1 has language that the City will need to determine if
an occupancy permit is approved. In other words, it sets the City up for potential liability.
Leland Grove does not issue Occupancy Permits at this time. If the Council decides to do this, it
may create more problems later on down the road. Alderman LoBue noted that the City could be
sued for not having anything in place.

Alderman Creasey further noted that if no Inspector employed by Leland Grove is available, the
Council should realize it can’t expect residents to follow through with hiring one themselves.
Alderman Moll mentioned this is a compromise Ordinance and much better than what we
currently have.

Alderman Williams is concerned that residents will have work done without reporting it to the
City for a permit. Alderman Creasey recommended the Council find out financial costs for
inspections before moving forward.

While the Council did not previously want to turnover inspections to the county, Attorney Morse
indicated the County could do the inspections for a flat rate and wanted the Council to think about
whether this would just be a better method.

Alderman Williams inquired if the City could do it for $150 with residents having the option to
opt out and go by way of hiring their own 3" party. Attorney Morse commented that if the City
issues permits it will be open to potential liability.



A committee will meet to resolve these issues.

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS

Finance and Revenue — Alderman Hetherington reported that the Council should consider salary increases
for next year at the next meeting. Administrator Lanier will work on the numbers for Alderman
Hetherington and both are looking at free training on grant writing for future use.

Health, Sanitation and Environment — Alderman LaMantia — Alderman Creasey will take over for
Alderman LaMantia and it was noted that the Hazard Mitigation Plan is not finished yet.

Police and Public Safety — Alderman Williams turned it over to Chief Dan Ryan who presented his
monthly report to the Council. Chief Ryan highlighted that the Department purchased some Spit masks
and updated squad car radar at no cost. Chief Ryan informed the Council that NARCON training is now
required for officers and will be scheduled accordingly.

Human Resources — Alderman LoBue had nothing new to report.

Public Ways and Property — Alderman Moll reported that Laurel and Illini Street intersection is next. He
suggested using the City website for comments ahead of time.

Building Permits and Zoning — Alderman LaMantia reported that there was only one application in the
month of December. Notice of Hearing will be posted and meeting date set.

OLD BUSINESS
None.

NEW BUSINESS

Culverts and drainage — Alderman LoBue reported that due to heavy rains in January, there have been a
lot of problems with drainage and would like the Council to consider developing a long range plan to
address culverts.

Recycling Options — Mayor Egizii called Waste Management for recycling options in Leland Grove. The
company says that Leland Grove would be priced the same as Springfield and will provide more details to
the Mayor.

By consensus, the Council adjourned for the evening.

POSTED: DATE: TIME:



